

Efectis Nederland BV P.O. Box 554 | 2665 ZN Bleiswijk Brandpuntlaan Zuid 16 | 2665 NZ Bleiswijk The Netherlands +31 88 3473 723 nederland@efectis.com

CLASSIFICATION OF FIRE RESISTANCE ACCORDING TO EN 13501-2: 2023 OF A UNITISED CURTAIN WALLING TYPE "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T EI30-18 IGU" BY AGC

Classification no.	2024-Efectis-R000138
Sponsor	AGC GLASS EUROPE 4, Avenue Jean Monnet 1348 Louvain-la-Neuve BELGIUM
Product name	Curtain walling type "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T EI30-18 IGU"
Prepared by	Efectis Nederland BV
Notified body no.	1234
Author(s)	P.W.M. Kortekaas S.D. Nieuwendijk M.Sc.
Project number	ENL-23-000183
Date of issue	February 2024
Number of pages	30



All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced and/or published without the previous written consent of Efectis Nederland BV. Submitting the report for inspection to parties who have a direct interest is permitted.

In case this report was drafted on instructions, the rights and obligations of contracting parties are subject to either the Standard Conditions of Efectis Nederland BV or the relevant agreement concluded between the contracting parties.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1.	Introduction	3					
1.1		Normative references	3					
1.2	Revision information							
	2.	Details of classified product	3					
2.1		General	3					
2.2		Description	3					
	3.	Test report and test results in support of the classification	4					
3.1		Test report	4					
3.2		Results	4					
	4.	Classification and field of application	5					
4.1		Reference of classification	5					
4.2		Classification	5					
4.3		Field of application	5					
4.4		General rules	5					
4.5		Rules for the complete construction	6					
4.6		Framing system	7					
4.7		Infill panels	10					
4.8		Perimeter seals / vertical linear joint seals	13					
4.9		Supporting floor	15					
4.10)	Walls abutting the curtain walling	15					
	5.	Limitations	15					
	6.	Drawings	16					



1. INTRODUCTION

This classification report defines the resistance to fire classification assigned to a curtain walling type "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T EI30-18 IGU" in accordance with the procedures given in EN 13501-2:2023.

1.1 NORMATIVE REFERENCES

Table 1.1: Normative references

European standard	Part
EN 1363-1:2020	Fire resistance tests – Part 1: General requirements
EN 1363-2:1999 / C1:2001	Fire resistance tests – Part 2: Alternative and additional procedures
EN 1364-3:2014	Fire resistance tests for non-loadbearing elements - Part 3: Curtain walling - Full configuration (complete assembly)
EN 13501-2:2023	Fire classification of construction products and building elements - Part 2: Classification using data from fire resistance tests, excluding ventilation services

1.2 REVISION INFORMATION

This is the first issue of the classification report.

2. DETAILS OF CLASSIFIED PRODUCT

2.1 GENERAL

The element, curtain walling type "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T EI30-18 IGU" is defined as a curtain walling.

For the dimensions and specifications of the materials and components of the examined construction, also see the figures in chapter 6. Details of the assembly of the construction are given in the paragraphs below.

2.2 DESCRIPTION

The element, curtain walling type "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T El30-18 IGU" is fully described in report with reference 2023-Efectis-R000824 in support of classification listed in 3.1.



3. TEST REPORT AND TEST RESULTS IN SUPPORT OF THE CLASSIFICATION

3.1 TEST REPORT

Table 3.1: Details test report

Name of laboratory and notified body number	Name of sponsor	Report ref. no	Test standard and Date
Efectis Nederland 1234	AGC GLASS EUROPE	2023-Efectis-R000824	EN 1364-3:2014

3.2 RESULTS

Table 3.2: Summary of test results



Component/ surface			Integ	jrity	ไทรเ	Radiation	
		Cotton pad	Gap gauge	Flaming	Mean temp. rise	Max. temp. rise	
Curtain	S2	61	61	61	61	glass: 61	61*
waiing						panels: 61	-
	S3	3 61	-	61	61	glass: 61	-
						panels: 16	-
	S4	61	-	61	61	61	-
	S5	61	-	61	-	-	-
	S6	61	-	61	-	61	-





Perimeter seal	61	61	61	-	17	-		
Vertical gap seal	61	61	61	-	20	-		
The heating was terminated after 61 minutes of heating after consulting the client								

The heating was terminated after 61 minutes of heating after consulting the client.

*) During this test the maximum radiation was 1.3 kW/m².

4. CLASSIFICATION AND FIELD OF APPLICATION

4.1 REFERENCE OF CLASSIFICATION

This classification has been carried out in accordance with Clause 7 of EN 13501-2:2023.

4.2 CLASSIFICATION

The element, curtain walling type "SCHÜCO FW50+ FR60 / PYROBEL-T EI30-18 IGU" is classified according to combinations of performance parameters and classes as described in Clause 7.5.3 of EN 13501-2:2023.

E60 (i→o) EW60 (i→o) EI15 (i→o)

4.3 FIELD OF APPLICATION

4.4 GENERAL RULES

4.4.1 General

The rules given in 4.5 to 4.7 apply to stick constructions only. For rules for unitised constructions see Annex A.

The rules given in 4.5 to 4.7 shall not be used for curtain walling constructions with glued infill panels (e.g. Structural Sealant Glazing Systems – SSGS).

Rules which result in higher weight of the curtain walling are only applicable if the fixing of the framing system used in practice has been designed for the higher load. The measured temperature at the fixing of the framing system shall be taken into account.

4.4.2 Exposure conditions

Test results from tests using the standard temperature time curve cover a test condition using the external fire curve but not vice versa.

4.4.3 Overrun time

For some rules to be applicable an overrun time in the fire test result compared to the envisaged classification time is required. The required overrun time is shown in Table 4.4.3. The overrun time is required for the following criteria:

- E classification: integrity
- EW classification: integrity and radiation
- El classification: integrity and insulation



Table 4.4.3 Overrun time

Classification Time	Overrun time
≤ 20 min	minimum 3 min
30, 45 and 60 min	minimum 6 min
≥ 90 min	minimum 10 % of the classification time

4.5 RULES FOR THE COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION

4.5.1 Width of the curtain walling

Test results are equally valid for curtain walling with classification E and EI extending over one or more fire separating walls with a higher distance between the fire separating walls than the width of the tested construction provided:

- the construction (distance of mullions etc.) are the same as the one tested;
- option A for detail D1 according to Figure 7 of EN 1364-3 was used in the test on one side, and
- a vertical linear gap seal abutting a simulated wall according to Detail D2 in Figures 5 and 6 of EN 1364-3 was used on the other side.

Test results are equally valid for curtain walling with a higher width than the width of the tested construction in case they are not abutting fire separating walls provided:

- the construction details (distance of mullions etc.) are the same as the one tested and
- option A for detail D1 according to Figure 7 of EN 1364-3 was used in the test on one side and Detail D2 or option B for detail D1 on the other side.

NOTE Width refers to the heated area of the test specimen

4.5.2 Height of the curtain walling

Test results are valid for a curtain walling of increased overall height, i.e. repetition of the tested construction in vertical direction provided the construction is the same as the one tested.

NOTE Height refers to the heated area of the test specimen.

4.5.3 Span length

Test results are also valid for curtain walling with classification E and El for a higher span length subject to a maximum of 1,2 times the span length used in the test provided:

- the maximum deflection perpendicular to the surface measured during the fire test is less than 100 mm, and
- there is sufficient elongation allowance of the mullions.

Test results are also valid for a higher span length subject to a maximum of 1,3 times the span length used in the test provided:

- an overrun time as defined in Table 4.4.3 has been achieved, and
- the maximum deflection perpendicular to the surface measured during the fire test is less than 100 mm, and
- there is sufficient elongation allowance of the mullions.

Test results are also valid for a higher span length subject to a maximum of 1,5 times the span length used in the test provided:

- an overrun time as defined in Table 2 has been achieved, and
- the maximum deflection perpendicular to the surface measured during the fire test is less than 50 mm, and
- there is sufficient elongation allowance of the mullions.

4.5.4 Installation angle (vertical/sloped)

Test results on a vertical curtain walling cover curtain walling sloped inside or sloped outside to a maximum angle of 10° from the vertical axis for both exposure orientations ($o \rightarrow i$ and $i \rightarrow o$).





Test results on a vertical curtain walling with an E or EW classification cover curtain walling sloped inside or sloped outside to a maximum angle of 12,5° from the vertical axis provided an overrun time was achieved according to Table 4.4.3 and the screws for fixing the infill panels / spandrel panels penetrate the mullions/transoms.

Test results on a vertical curtain walling with an El classification cover curtain walling sloped inside or sloped outside to a maximum angle of 15° from the vertical axis provided an overrun time was achieved according to Table 4.4.3 and the screws for fixing the infill panels / spandrel panels penetrate the mullions/transoms.

4.5.5 Facet angles of horizontally faceted curtain walling

4.5.5.1 Installation tolerance

Facet angles between 0 and 1,5° (angle β in Figure 1 of EN 1364-3) is covered by a test on a straight curtain walling. In case the curtain walling includes fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels the rule is only applicable if the overlap of the pressure plate and/or the edge cover on the inner side of a fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panel, whatever is smaller, is minimum the same as in the fire test for infill panels with EI classification and the same as tested for infill panels with E or EW classification (see Figure 20 of EN 1364-3).

4.5.5.2 Small facet angles

Facet angles between $\geq 1,5^{\circ}$ and 5° are covered by a test on a straight curtain walling provided:

- the system remains the same as in the fire test and
- the pressure plate remains the same as in the fire test and
- the nominal inner or outer edge cover of the translucent or transparent infill panel, which ever would be decreased by the inclination of the translucent or transparent infill panel, remains the same as in the fire test and
- an overrun time according to Table 4.4.3 has been achieved.

NOTE The maximum facet angle covered will depend on the thickness of the translucent or transparent infill panel and on the maximum distance the translucent or transparent infill panel can be moved towards the centre of the mullion.

This rule does not apply to curtain walling with E and EW classification.

4.6 FRAMING SYSTEM

4.6.1 Distance between mullions and transoms

The distance between the mullions and transoms is defined by the rules for the infill panels, based on test results on straight specimens.

Test results on a higher distance between the mullions and/or transoms cover smaller distances.

Test results cover a higher distance between mullions and/or transoms than tested subject to the rules given in 13.4, provided that all of the relevant frame junctions have been tested in accordance with this standard.

4.6.2 Geometry/dimension of mullions and transoms

Test results cover higher wall thickness of mullions and transoms made of metal subject to a maximum of 1,5 times the thickness used in the test. Decrease of wall thickness is not permitted.

Test results cover width and depth ranges of mullions and transoms as given in Table 4.6.2. A decrease of width and /or depth of mullions and transom is not permitted. The values given in Table 4.6.2 refer to the factor the width and depth may be higher in comparison to the width and/or depth used in the test.





Table 4.6.2 Factor for width and depth of mullions and transoms

Framing	Classific	ation E ar	nd EW		Classification El			
	Transom	I	Mullion		Transom		Mullion	
material	Width	Depth	Width	Depth	Width	Depth	Width	Depth
Aluminium	1,25 ^{A,C}	1,5 ^b	1,25 ^{A,C}	1,5	1,25 ^A	2 ^b	1,25 ^A	2
^A In case the tra	^A In case the transom or mullion contains a core material for the purpose of improving the fire							
resistance the dimensions of this core material shall be increased so that the contact area with the								
aluminium remai	ns minimu	im the sa	me and the	overlap be	etween the	infill panel :	and the cor	е

material remains minimum the same.

^B But maximum to the depth of the mullion.

^c Provided the pressure plate system is changed accordingly so that the overlap remains the same subject to the rules given in 7.3.7.

4.6.3 Connection between mullions and transoms

4.6.3.1 Connection geometry

Figure 21 of EN 1364-3 shows a cross connection, vertical T-connection, horizontal/standing and horizontal/hanging T connection.

Test results for a cross-connection do not cover T-connections and vice versa.

A horizontal T-connection does not cover a vertical one and vice versa.

A standing T-connection does not cover a hanging T-connection and vice versa.

Test results for cross connections or T-connections with an angle of 90° between mullions and transoms cover situations where the angle between mullions and transoms is minimum 80° and maximum 100° disregarding whether the mullions are vertically oriented or not or the transoms are horizontally oriented or not. This rule also applies to corner connections of unitised systems.

4.6.3.2 Connection system between framing members

Test results for a particular connection system are only valid for connection systems of the same construction principle.

The dimensions of the connection system may be varied as required in relation to dimension changes of mullions and transoms according to 7.3.2 of EN 1364-3.

4.6.4 Framing material

4.6.4.1 Metal framing

Test results for steel do not apply to aluminium and vice versa.

Test results apply only to the aluminium alloy used in the test. Change to another aluminium alloy is not permitted.

4.6.4.2 Timber framing

No direct application.

4.6.5 Decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings

Decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings which achieve minimum class A2 according to EN 13501-1 together with the relevant frame component may be added or changed without restrictions.





Any decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings with a thickness equal to or less than 1,5 mm may be added or changed without restrictions for curtain walling classified EI.

Decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings of more than 1,5 mm thickness other than covered by the rule given in the first paragraph shall be included in the test as part of the test specimen. Test results of such decorative frame coverings/coatings apply only to decorative frame coverings/coatings made of the same material type and thickness. Decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings other than covered by the rule given in the first paragraph for curtain walling classified E or EW shall be included in the test as part of the test specimen. Test results of such decorative frame coverings/coatings apply to all types of decorative frame coverings/coatings of minimum the same reaction to fire class according to EN 13501-1 and of maximum the same thickness as used in the test if the framing system was at the unexposed side of the test specimen. Otherwise the results apply only to decorative frame coverings/coatings made of the same material type and thickness.

Test results for decorative frame surface treatments/coverings/coatings other than covered by the rule given in the first paragraph from a test for intended classification E may be also used for classification EW.

4.6.6 Fixing of the framing system (anchoring)

Fixing system made of aluminium / aluminium alloys: no change in material is permitted. Test results for a fixing system made of aluminium / aluminium alloys covers steel but not vice versa. Fixing system made of steel: change of alloy within construction steels (unalloyed / low alloy steels) is permitted.

Combinations of fixing positions in relation to the floor (in front, on top or below) and positions of the fixed and loose anchor (hanging or standing curtain walling) are covered by test results on a particular combination according to Table 4.6.6. Table 4.6.6 is applicable for internal exposure.

Test results on a particular fixing system type (anchored or cast-in or welded) are not applicable to another type. Change in geometrical shape and/or linear dimensions within a fixing system type is permitted on the basis of a proper static calculation. The temperature at the fixing measured in the fire test shall be taken into account. If no temperature data of the fixing are available only increase in linear dimensions is permitted.

Test results for a non-insulated fixing system (not embedded in insulation material) apply equally to the same fixing system embedded in insulation material of reaction to fire class A1 or A2 according to EN 13501-1 but not vice versa.

Tested	Covere	ed			\rightarrow							
	AF/A	BF/B	CF/A	CF/B	CF/C	A	_/A	AL/B	BL/B	CL/A	CL/B	CL/C
AL/AF	Y	N	N	N	N			N	N	N	N	N
A) Fixing B) Fixing C) Fixing F) Fixed b L) Floatin	in front o on top o on botto pearing g bearin	of the flo of the flo om of the g (to all	oor (see I or (see F e floor (se ow therm	Figure 22 Figure 22 ee Figure nal extens	2)) e 22) sion)		N) n Y) c Y ₁) c com	not covere covered w covered, npletely n	ed vithout re provided nade of s	estriction d the fixin steel	ıg is	

Table 4.6.6 Field of application rules for fixing positions

The first position indicates the type of fixing on the upper floor, the second position the type of fixing on the lower floor, e. g.:

AF/BL: Fixed bearing in front of the floor used on the upper floor / floating bearing on top of the floor used on the lower floor (hanging curtain walling)

AL/BF: Floating bearing in front of the floor used on the upper floor / fixed bearing on top of the floor used on the lower floor (standing curtain walling)

For further explanation see B.7.6.3 of EN 1364-3.



4.6.7 Pressure plate system

4.6.7.1 Edge cover / overlap of pressure plate

Results from tests with a smaller edge cover / overlap of the pressure plate on the infill panel are also valid for a higher edge cover / overlap but not vice versa. This rule applies for both, the outer and inner edge cover (Figure 20 of EN 1364-3). This rule does not apply to fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels with E or EW classification.

4.6.7.2 Size of pressure plate

Smaller and higher widths of the pressure plate are covered provided the moment of inertia of the pressure plate in the axis as shown in Figure 20 of EN 1364-3 is minimum the same as tested and the overlap is minimum the same as tested subject to the rules given in 7.3.7.1 of EN 1364-3.

4.6.7.3 Material of pressure plate

Results for aluminium pressure plates are also valid for steel pressure plates of the same width, but not vice versa. The flexural strength of the pressure plate shall be equal or higher than the flexural strength used in the test.

4.6.7.4 Screws

The screws shall have minimum the same effective screw depth (i.e. depth in the mullion/transom) and minimum the same cross section as used in the test. The distance between the screws may be reduced but not increased.

4.6.7.5 Mullion and transom cover cap

Test results on any cover cap are equally valid for all other types of cover plates of minimum the same classification according to EN 13501-1, subject to maximum the same width in case of classifications E and EW.

4.6.8 Other fixing systems than pressure plate

Test results are only applicable to the fixing system used in the test.

Results from tests with a smaller edge cover / overlap of the fixing system on the infill panel are also valid for a higher edge cover / overlap but not vice versa. This rule applies for both, the outer and inner edge cover. This does not apply to fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels with E or EW classification.

4.7 INFILL PANELS

4.7.1 Opaque (non-translucent/non-transparent) infill panels

4.7.1.1 Type / construction

Test results cover only the type / construction of the infill panel(s) used in the test.

4.7.1.2 Dimensions

Test results cover smaller panel width and height.

Test results cover a higher thickness of the panel.

Test results cover a higher thickness of the panel insulation.

Test results for an infill panel of particular dimensions cover dimensions up to a maximum of the tested dimension multiplied by a factor 1,2 in width and/or height but only up to an area of maximum the tested area multiplied by a factor 1,21 provided an overrun time according to Table 4.4.3 has been achieved in the test.





For classification times 30 min, 45 min and 60 min a factor 1,1 may be used to calculate the covered range of height, width and area, if the overrun time achieved in the test is less than the 6 min required in Table 4.4.3 but minimum 3 min.

For a classification time \ge 90 min a factor 1,1 may be used to calculate the covered range of height, width and area, if the overrun time achieved in the test is less than the 10 % required in Table 2 but minimum 5 %.

Test results cover smaller distances in between fixing centres, vertical and horizontal.

4.7.1.3 Aspect ratio of individual infill panels

Test results for rectangular panels with portrait as well as landscape format cover all aspect ratios subject to the rules given in 7.4.1.2 of EN 1364-3 provided that all panels have been tested in an identical framing system.

4.7.1.4 Geometrical shapes

Test results for a rectangular panel cover all other shapes provided that their size can be cut out of the tested rectangular size, subject to the rules given in 7.3.3.1 of EN 1364-3.

4.7.1.5 Materials

No direct application.

Test results of a non-faced mineral wool board are equally applicable to an aluminium faced version of this mineral wool board but not vice versa.

The insulation material as used in the test shall not be changed.

The thickness of the insulation may be increased.

The type of fixing of the components to each other (e.g. gluing) shall not be changed.

External layers for optical reasons (e.g. metal, stone, concrete, glass) may be added or changed without restriction to the material.

Increased weight of the infill panels as a result of changes according to the rules above shall be considered for the anchoring, the dimensioning of mullions and transoms and the fixing system for the panels.

4.7.1.6 Back panel metal sheeting

Change of thickness of metal sheeting is not permitted.

4.7.2 Sandwich panels

The thickness of the insulation material may be increased. Change in thickness of metal sheeting is not permitted. Increased weight of the infill panels as a result of changes according to the rules above shall be considered.

4.7.3 Translucent or transparent infill panels

4.7.3.1 Type of fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panel

4.7.3.1.1 General

Three major types of fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels were identified:

- a fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panel consisting only of the glass component that gives the fire resistance; this may be a monolithic pane, a laminated pane or a gel type glass depending on the required classification (E, EW or EI), indicated A in Figure 23 of EN 1364-3: 2014;
- an IGU consisting of the part that gives the fire resistance and a single pane for UV/acoustic/safety





performance (counter pane), with or without additional coatings on either side of the counter pane, indicated B in Figure 23 (example shown with coating inside);

• an IGU consisting of the part that gives the fire resistance and a laminated pane for UV/acoustic/safety performance (counter pane), with or without additional coatings on either side of the counter pane, indicated C in Figure 23 (example shown with coating inside).

4.7.3.1.2 Classification El $(i \rightarrow o)$

Test results of type A are equally applicable to type B and C but not vice versa.

Test results of type B are equally applicable to type C and vice versa.

Test results of type B without additional coatings are equally applicable to type B with additional coatings but not vice versa.

Test results of type C without additional coatings are equally applicable to type C with additional coatings but not vice versa.

NOTE For details see Figure 23 of EN 1364-3.

4.7.3.1.3 Classification El (o \rightarrow i)

No direct application.

4.7.3.1.4 Classification E, EW

No rules applicable.

4.7.3.1.5 Provisions

All rules given in 7.4.3.1.2 and 7.4.3.1.3 are valid only provided:

- the glass component that gives the fire resistance is of the same type (monolithic, laminated or gel type) as tested and is made by the same manufacturer, and
- the fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panel is CE marked based on a classification according to EN 13501-2 in minimum one glazed construction.

4.7.3.2 Dimensions of individual rectangular fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels

Test results cover smaller panel width and height.

Test results cover a higher thickness of the panel.

The framing system under consideration shall be able to support the additional weight due to the increased thickness of the panel.

Test results for a panel of particular dimensions cover dimensions up to a maximum of the tested dimension multiplied by a factor 1,2 in width and/or height but only up to an area of maximum the tested area multiplied by a factor 1,21 provided an overrun time according to Table 4.4.3 has been achieved in the test.

For classification times 30 min, 45 min a factor 1,1 may be used to calculate the covered range of height, width and area, if the overrun time achieved in the test is less than the 6 min required in Table 4.4.3 but minimum 3 min.

For fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels with EW classification the rules given above are only applicable if

- the mean unexposed face temperature remained below 300° C (see EN 1363-2), or
- the test specimen was glazed over its full area and the measured radiation did not exceed 12,5 kW/m² (for further explanation see B.7.7.1 of EN 1364-3).





4.7.3.3 Aspect ratio of individual rectangular fire resistant translucent or transparent infill panels

Test results for rectangular translucent or transparent infill panels with portrait as well as landscape format cover all aspect ratios up to an area $A \le 1/2 * (A_{portrait} + A_{landscape})$ provided that:

- all translucent or transparent infill panels have been tested in an identical framing system;
- the largest tested width as well as the largest tested height is not exceeded.

In case an overrun time has been achieved according to Table 4.4.3 the values for A_{portrait} and A_{landscape} may be determined by using the rules for dimensions given in 7.4.3.2 of EN 1364-3.

4.7.3.4 Geometrical shapes

Test results for a rectangular translucent or transparent infill panel cover all other shapes provided that their size can be cut out of the tested rectangular size subject to the rules given in 7.3.3.1 of EN 1364-3.

4.7.3.5 Asymmetry in thickness

If the translucent or transparent infill panel is asymmetrical in an axis perpendicular to the surface the test result is only valid for the direction and type of exposure (internal or external exposure) as tested.

4.7.4 Glazing materials

4.7.4.1 Gaskets

4.7.4.1.1 General

Gaskets with a higher material cross sectional area in the uncompressed state cover gaskets with a smaller cross-sectional area but not vice versa. The cross-sectional area in the uncompressed state may be increased by maximum 50 % compared to what was tested.

Test results from particular gasket geometry are also applicable to other geometries. In case of curtain walling classified E or EW no material addition (e.g. lips) is permitted on the side of the gasket that is visible in the built-in situation.

Test results cover only the gasket material used in the test.

4.7.4.1.2 Sealants

Change in type of material (e.g. acrylic, silicone) is not permitted.

Test results cover a lower sealant height (for definition see Figure 20 of EN 1364-3) and a higher sealant height up to a maximum of 1,2 times the height used in the test.

The sealant depth (for definition see Figure 20) shall be minimum the same as tested.

4.7.4.1.3 Intumescent strips/layers

Changes to intumescent strips/layers are not permitted.

4.8 PERIMETER SEALS / VERTICAL LINEAR JOINT SEALS

4.8.1 General

Perimeter seals tested according to this standard shall not be used where in practice movement of the perimeter joint is expected.

NOTE For information on test requirements for perimeter seals in case of required movement capability see B.7.8 of EN 1364-3.

4.8.2 Orientation

Results from tests on perimeter seals (horizontal linear gap seals) are only valid for perimeter seals.





Results from tests on vertical linear gap seals are only valid for vertical linear gap seals.

4.8.3 Material

Test results for non-faced mineral wool are equally applicable to an aluminium faced version of the same mineral wool product (brand designation) but not vice versa.

Test results for mineral wool are valid for a version with higher density of the same mineral wool product (brand designation) as long as it is compressible to the same extent as in the test, subject to restrictions depending on the direction of compression given in 7.5.5.4 of EN 1364-3.

Test results for compressed mineral wool are equally applicable to mineral wool of higher compression, subject to restrictions depending on the direction of compression given in 7.5.5.4 of EN 1364-3.

Changes to other materials or components are not permitted.

4.8.4 Width/depth

For definition of width and depth of the perimeter seal see Figure 22 of EN 1364-3. For definition of width and depth of the vertical linear gap seal see Figure 7C.

Test results for linear joint seals or seal components with lower depth are equally applicable to linear joint seals with higher depth but not vice versa. For membrane forming coatings and elastomeric strips the results apply for all thicknesses within the tolerance band for the membrane/strip and higher depth of mineral wool (or other backing material).

Test results for linear joint seals with higher nominal width are equally applicable to linear joint seals with narrower nominal width but not vice versa, subject to the depth of the seal or its components being minimum the same as tested and subject to the rules regarding compression (see 7.5.5.4). For membrane forming coatings and elastomeric strips the overlap on the floor and the spandrel shall be in practice minimum the same as tested.

Test results for linear joint seals with an overrun according to Table 4.4.3 cover a nominal width range up to 1,2 times the tested nominal width, except for products with distinct sizes for specific gap widths and preformed products which are kept in place by compression (no additional mechanical fixing provided).

In case an intumescent sealant is used as component of the perimeter seal its depth may be increased. For definition of depth see Figure 22 of EN 1364-3.

4.8.5 Fixing of the perimeter seal

For mechanically fixed seals the fixing of the perimeter seal is restricted to the fixing used in the test. For self-adherent seals or seal components, e.g. membrane forming coatings and sealants, as well as for adhesion fixed seals or seal components, e.g. elastomeric strips, the results apply for all substrates for which the adhesion is shown to be equal to or better than that in the fire test.

NOTE An example for adhesion fixing is the use of a glue to fix the seal or seal component.

For friction fixed seals or seal components, e.g. mineral wool and compressible strips, minimum the same compression shall be used in practice as used in the test, subject to the following rule.

For mineral wool with compression direction B-B or C-C according to Figure 24 the compression shall be minimum the same as tested but sufficiently low not to induce a mechanical failure of the seal, e.g. by de-lamination fracture.





4.8.6 Covering

Tests without steel sheet covering cover perimeter seal systems including steel sheet covering, provided it is not force-fit fixed to the curtain walling, disregarding whether the steel sheet covering is installed on top or on bottom of the seal, but not vice versa.

Test results are only valid for the covering material used in the test.

No additional coverings of reaction to fire classification B to F according to EN 13501-1 are permitted on bottom side of perimeter seals and on both sides of vertical linear gap seals.

4.9 SUPPORTING FLOOR

Test results obtained with the standard supporting floor construction may be applied to concrete floors of a thickness and density equal to or greater than that of the floor construction used in the test.

4.10 WALLS ABUTTING THE CURTAIN WALLING

Test results obtained with rigid standard wall constructions according to EN 1364-3 paragraph 7.3.1 may be applied to concrete or masonry separating wall constructions of a thickness and density equal to or greater than that of the wall construction used in the test.

5. LIMITATIONS

This classification document does not represent type approval or certification of the product.

SIGNED

la le lesa

P.W.M. Kortekaas Project leader fire resistance engineering

APPROVED

S.D. Nieuwendijk M.Sc. Project leader fire resistance



6. DRAWINGS



Figure 1: Overview of all sections





Figure 2: Overview of unexposed side



CLASSIFICATION







Figure 3: Horizontal sections









Figure 4: Vertical sections A-A and B-B







Figure 5: Vertical sections C-C and D-D



This report consists of thirty pages and may only be used in its entirety.



Figure 8: Detail A3





Figure 9: Detail B1



Figure 10: Detail C1





Figure 11: Detail E1





Figure 12: Detail E2





Figure 13: Detail G1





Figure 14: Detail G2







Figure 15: Detail H1



Na	Description			Dimensions	Density	Antiolous
NO.	Description	Supplier	Material	(mm)	(kg/dm³)	Article no.
1	Mullion 125	Schüco	Aluminium	50 x 125	2.7	326400
2	Transom 130	Schüco	Aluminium	50 X 130	2.7	326440
3	Transom 124	Schüco	Aluminium	50 X 124	2.7	326460
4	Cover cap 15	Schüco	Aluminium	50 X 15	2.7	112720
5	Cover cap 20	Schüco	Aluminium	50 X 20	2.7	493730
6	Stainless steel pressure plate	Schüco	Stainless steel	47 X 9,5	>7,8	202764
7	Isolator 37	Schüco	PVC-U	37 X 10	npd	224811
10	Kerafix Flexpan 200	Schüco (Rolfkuhn)	sealing tape	39 x 2,4	npd	298489
12	Glazing gasket 3,5	Schüco	EPDM	15 x 3,5	npd	244983
14	Glazing rebate gasket 5	Schüco	EPDM	12 x 5	npd	224662
17	Glazing rebate gasket 11	Schüco	EPDM	12 x 11	npd	244295
19	Kerafix Coolmax fire board	Schüco (Rolfkuhn)	Kerafix Coolmax	9X100, 9X17, 85X16	1.4	288311
20	Flat steel	Schüco	Steel	85 x 18 x 330	>7,8	202632
21	Foam strip 10x10	Schüco	Polyethylene	10 x 10	npd	298158
22	Facade bracket	Schüco	Aluminium	210 X 102	2.7	351240
23	Anchor M10	SPIT	Steel	npd	>7,8	npd
24	Fixing bracket assembly					205024
24	DIN 931 A2	Schüco	Stainless steel	10 x 100	>7,8	205934
25	Adjustment plate	Schüco	Aluminium	40 x 40 x 5	2.7	228049
26	Aluminium spacer tube	Schüco	Aluminium	15 X 2,5	2.7	122660
27	Kerafix Coolmax fire board	Schüco (Rolfkuhn)	Kerafix Coolmax	9X107, 17X9, 16X101	1.4	288314
28	Kerafix Coolmax fire board	Schüco (Rolfkuhn)	Kerafix Coolmax	9X100, 17X9, 16X95	1.4	288316
29	T-cleats	Schüco	Aluminium		2.7	226882
31	Fixing kit	Schüco	Aluminium	90X11,9	2.7	237921
22	Eiving kit		Stainless steel /	M6X16 A4		205077
32		Schüco	Aluminium	& 59,8X11,9	>7,8 & 2,7	203911
33	Straight mullion joint	Schüco	PP	24,8X80X31,5	npd	224816
24	Flat head screw					
34	ST5,5x19 ISR 25	Schüco	Stainless steel	5,5 x 19	>7,8	205241
35	Glass carrier 48	Schüco	Aluminium	100 X 48 X 20	2.7	268618
37	Glazing block hard wood	Schüco	Hard wood	45 x 100 x 4	?	298760
39	Oval head screw ST 5,5x54	Schüco	Stainless steel	5,5 x 54	>7,8	205892
40	Oval head screw ST 5,5x54	Schüco	Stainless steel	5,5 x 54	>7,8	205892
42	Oval head screw ST 3,9x13	Schüco	Stainless steel	3,9 x 13	>7,8	205437
43	Oval head screw ST 5,5x48	Schüco	Stainless steel	5,5 x 48	>7,8	205890
44	Oval head screw ST 5,5x24	Schüco	Stainless steel	5,5 x 24	>7,8	205881
45	Promatect-H t=25	PROMAT	Calcium silicate	25 mm	870 kg/m ³	n/a
46	Steel sheet t=1	STEEL	Steel	1 mm	>7,8	n/a
47	Mineral wool	ROCKWOOL	Mineral wool	140 mm	70 kg/m ³	n/a
48	Promatect-H t=42 (2x15+12)	PROMAT	Calcium silicate	42 mm	870 kg/m ³	n/a

Figure 16: Part list